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To All Interested Consultants 
 
Project:  Whitnall Golf Course Irrigation 
PROJECT NO.  P545-02530 
 
Subject :  AMENDMENT No. 2 for REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (R.F.P.) 
 
Clarification Questions and Answers in Red  
 
Under the Scope of Work, there is a reference to "construction of water lateral to clubhouse and 
maintenance facility".  Can you explain what that means?   
The desire is to provide the clubhouse and maintenance facility with municipal water.  They are currently 
serviced by a well.  At this time, I am uncertain of the nearest watermain location that could be used to 
tap into.  The consultant should include in their fee an initial evaluation of options to bring municipal water 
to the clubhouse and maintenance facility and provide a construction cost estimate to complete the work.  
Providing the actual design for the watermain along with constructions documents and permit application 
would be considered an additional service and a fee would be negotiated.     
 
The RFP indicates that the County would like the Consultant to prepare topographic mapping and base 
maps.  Does the County have Lidar or GIS topographic mapping of the golf course? 
Milwaukee County will provide all available topographic drawings along with an aerial base map for your 
use. 
 
Does the County have a budget or an engineer's cost estimate for the proposed irrigation and golf course 
improvements? 
No budget for construction has been determined.  Included in the scope of work is for the consultant to 
provide a cost estimate for the construction of the project per the construction documents.  This cost 
estimate will be used to set the budget amount for the 2024 Capital Budget. 
 
Under project description on page 2 the RFP indicates that the project will include replacement of the 
pump house. Is the County looking for a new structure that will require a licensed architect to design and 
sign the structural and electrical drawings?  
The capital budget description states to refurbish the pumphouse to address normal wear over the past 
20 years such as cosmetic items like painting, possibly roofing as well as structural and foundation 
concerns so a licensed Architect or Structural Engineer may be recommended. If a new structure was 
determined to be needed based upon the evaluation, the work would be considered an additional service 
and a fee would be negotiated. 
 
On page 3 paragraph 1C, the RFP indicates that the Consultant will be required to GPS map all existing 
green surfaces and immediate surrounds of each green. However, prior to that paragraph, the RFP 
indicates that the project scope will require modifications to 7-10 greens.  What is the purpose of GPS 
mapping the putting surfaces?  Does the County want to recreate them exactly even if they are to be 
relocated? Would existing topographic mapping suffice? 
The scope of work is to complete a survey of all the existing green surfaces and immediate surrounds for 
the entire golf course and then provide as-builts of the new greens. 
 
Can you better define the tree survey requirements in the RFP? Does the County have an existing tree 
inventory – I know Parks has inventories on some sites. I was thinking we would just survey treelines and 
any specific trees of concern that are identified in initial walk throughs.  Please clarify County 
expectations for this.  
A tree inventory showing species would only be required on any existing trees that are impacted by the 
construction of the golf course improvements. 
 
Just to confirm our conversations, wetland mapping for the base map will be shown based on available 
wetland mapping on WDNR Surface Water Data Viewer site or the County GIS site.  Wetland delineations 
are excluded. 
The understanding of the wetland mapping is correct.  If it is determined that wetland delineation is 
required as part of the construction project, the work would be considered an additional service and a fee 
would be negotiated. 
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Also just to confirm, floodplains will be shown based on FEMA mapping and any floodplain mapping on 
the County GIS site. 
Your understanding is correct. 
 
Regarding construction of the water lateral to the clubhouse and maintenance building, it was mentioned 
that the nearest water was by Root River Area 1. Will the County provide mapping of existing 
water?  Also, we want to confirm that the purpose of the laterals is not to feed the irrigation system. Are 
these buildings currently on well systems? Will the County provide the required water service size for 
each building? 
All available watermain mapping will be provided to the consultant.  The irrigation system will be fed from 
a pond on site.  Water service size for each building will be determined by usage during the design.  The 
buildings are currently serviced by a well.  At this time, I am uncertain of the nearest watermain location 
that could be used to tap into.  The consultant should include in their fee an initial evaluation of options to 
bring municipal water to the clubhouse and maintenance facility and provide a construction cost estimate 
to complete the work.  Providing the actual design for the watermain along with constructions documents 
and permit application would be considered an additional service and a fee would be negotiated.     
 
For the existing mapping, collecting the existing irrigation data is requested. Will the County provide this 
in the form of an as-built file that we incorporate into the base plan or will these components need to be 
flagged and surveyed in? If we need to survey, will the County flag the components? 
Milwaukee County will provide all available existing irrigation mapping.  If the irrigation system needs to 
be surveyed in, components that the County has knowledge of will be flagged. 
 
If an opening needs to be created or if a wall needs to come down in the existing pump building to get 
existing equipment out or new equipment in, will this be completed by the County or will the team need to 
account for an architect, electrical engineer and mechanical engineer to create the drawings for the 
opening? 
Creating an opening in the wall, or removing the wall is not anticipated to be required. If the structure 
needed to be modified creating an opening or removing a wall, the work would be considered an 
additional service and a fee would be negotiated. 
 
I also wanted to confirm that the County will provide existing utility mapping throughout the golf course.  
Milwaukee County will provide all available utility mapping throughout the golf course for your use. 
 
 
 

 
Sincerely,  

   
 

David S. Gulgowski____ 
David Gulgowski, P.E.  
Project Manager 

 
 

 


